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A response to Bp. Athanasius Schneider on the SSPX 
‘A lamentable and sordid production’ 
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/a-response-to-bp-athanasius-schneider-on-the-sspx                   

January 23, 2021
In December 2020, Bp. Athanasius Schneider of Kazakhstan published a "plea for fairness in SSPX abuse allegations"* in LifesiteNews. Bishop Schneider is widely known and respected for his public stands in defense of the Faith, and LifesiteNews is an influential media outlet among Catholics. His plea is liable to have some effect in casting doubt on the truthfulness or gravity of allegations about sexual abuse by priests of the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX). Because this plea is an exercise in deception, a response to it is imperative. 

The subject of Bp. Schneider's article is the accusations made by a number of sources about the SSPX's actions in connection with sexual abuse. He never says what specific allegations he is discussing. Anyone who assumes that Bp. Schneider intends to give a fair and objective evaluation of the accusations made against the SSPX would find it odd that he never identifies the sources that his remarks are aimed at. What is the point of criticizing nameless voices? Such criticism cannot be properly evaluated by his audience, if he does not identify whom it is aimed at.
If Bp. Schneider were attempting a fair and objective discussion, this would be an inexplicable and fatal flaw. But it is a valuable if commonplace manoeuvre in deception and propaganda. If one attempts to rebut one of his criticisms by pointing out that it does not apply to a given accusation, he can reply that he did not have that particular accusation in mind, but some other one. As long as he does not state which accusations he does have in mind, this tactic is always open to him.   

However, anyone who has some familiarity with this issue will know that although stories about SSPX involvement in sexual abuse have been published in many media outlets, the most prominent accusations against the SSPX in Catholic circles have been made by Church Militant. His statements will thus naturally be understood by his audience as applying to the stories that Church Militant has published on this topic. He will know that this is the case; after all, he published his article in LifesiteNews, shortly after that media organization engaged in a dispute with Church Militant about the accusations that have been made concerning the SSPX and sexual abuse. So the stories published by Church Militant about the SSPX are the target of his article.  
Bishop Schneider's article, like most effective attempts at deception, does not contain any straightforward lies. Instead, it uses the tried and true methods of suggesting falsehood and suppressing truth.  

The suppression of truth is straightforward and complete. It consists in the fact that not a single concrete accusation against the SSPX is mentioned in Bp. Schneider's article, let alone refuted. This suppression is necessary for his task of deception. Giving the details of even one of the most serious accusations against the SSPX would alert readers to the facts that there is substance to the accusations made by Church Militant, and that the SSPX is a corrupt organization. 
 

The case of Fr. Frédéric Abbet

 HYPERLINK "https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/spotlight-hes-a-good-liar" \t "_blank"  illustrates this point1. In 2006, Fr. Frédéric Abbet was found to have molested a number of boys. A SSPX tribunal acquitted him in the face of the evidence, but nonetheless ordered that he not be permitted to be around children for 10 years. Two months after this order, Bp. Bernard Fellay, then-superior of the SSPX, placed Fr. Abbet in a priory attached to a boys' school in Belgium, where he inevitably molested more boys. When the Belgian authorities placed Abbet on trial, the SSPX paid for his high-powered and expensive lawyer and concealed evidence of Abbet's crimes from the civil authorities. Abbet was convicted, but fled Belgium before he was jailed. He was only imprisoned2 because Church Militant discovered that he was living freely in Switzerland, and informed the Swiss and Belgian authorities of his evasion of justice.  
Similar stories can be told about Fr. Pierre de Maillard3, Fr. Pierre Duverger4, Fr. Philippe 

 HYPERLINK "https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-gave-pedophile-access-to-boys" \t "_blank" Peignot5 and Fr. Ramon Angles 6. The SSPX not only protected all these priests from exposure and prosecution for criminal sexual abuse, but knowingly provided them with opportunities to commit further abuse. [Fr. Pierre de Maillard, Fr. Pierre Duverger, Fr. Philippe Peignot, Fr. Ramón Anglés]
Bishop Schneider's suggestions of falsehood are found in the following passages:

("One could get the impression that the SSPX would be the only Catholic religious organization that had to respond to such accusations."

This implies that Church Militant has restricted itself to criticizing the SSPX for its protection of sexual abusers and cover-up of sexual abuse, and has not published stories about other dioceses or religious orders that have committed these crimes. 
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Convicted pedophile Fr. Frédéric Abbet SSPX
In fact, Church Militant has conducted extensive investigations on the sexual abuse crimes of Cdl. Theodore McCarrick, the late Cdl. Joseph Bernardin, the Third Order Regular Franciscan Friars and the dioceses of Buffalo, Allentown, Erie, Greensburg, Pittsburgh, Scranton, Harrisburg, Altoona-Johnstown, Saginaw, Richmond and New York, among others.

("It is difficult to simply dismiss the impression that some of the accusations were conducted in a biased manner."

This is an evasive way of saying the accusations were conducted in a biased manner. Why say this? No reason is given. The reader is supposed to trust Bp. Schneider's assertion about bias, and since he is a well-respected figure, this trust is likely to be extended to him. Since there are a large number of accusations against the SSPX, the qualification "some" makes it virtually impossible to respond to this statement in an effective way. It is practical to show that one or two accusations were based on solid evidence, such as eyewitness accounts, SSPX documents, court judgments and so on, and that the SSPX was asked to reply to the accusations but declined to do so. But this is open to the response: Well, the particular accusation you describe may not be biased, but it is not typical of the accusations you make. You have chosen an uncharacterisic example of a reasonable accusation. Every religious society is going to have some real offenders, and you have picked a case where the accused in undoubtedly guilty in order to show that you are not biased.
In order to rebut this defense, it is necessary to go through most or all of the accusations that have been made, and demonstrate that in each case the accusation has been supported by solid grounds. But this requires effectively repeating all the content of the stories that Bp. Schneider is criticizing. The bishop's article is not aimed at readers who are willing to carefully examine all this content; it is aimed at the great majority of LifesiteNews readers who will take him at his word and will go no farther in examining the evidence. As a result, they will never be confronted by the interviews with adult victims of abuse, the emails and letters between SSPX priests, the court verdicts and the recorded confessions of guilty SSPX priests that form the basis of the Church Militant reports. 
("It is part of fundamental justice and logic that religious communities or dioceses cannot be held responsible for the atrocities which their members or employees committed after they had been separated or dismissed from these communities."

This suggests that the accusations made by Church Militant are about crimes committed by members or employees of the SSPX after the criminals had left the Society or its employ. This is false. Virtually all the crimes reported by Church Militant were committed by priests when they belonged to the Society, and were covered up by the SSPX while the priests continued in ministry. Some of the worst criminals identified by Church Militant, such as Fr. Ramon Angles, remain priests in good standing with the Society.  

Nor is it true that "fundamental justice" requires that "religious communities or dioceses cannot be held responsible for the atrocities which their members or employees committed after they had been separated or dismissed from these communities." It is common knowledge that sex offenders continue to commit abuse until they are forced to stop. A religious community that identifies sex offenders in its midst has a duty to assist in bringing these criminals to justice, both so that they will answer for the crimes they have already committed and so that they will be prevented from committing crimes in the future.
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Fr. Ramon Angles, top SSPX canonical advisor, is under criminal investigation for allegedly raping a male teen who went on to commit suicide
If such a religious community does not report offenders in its midst to the police, it continues to be responsible for the crimes they commit after they leave or are expelled from the community. It is also responsible for these crimes if it fails to inform the later employers of the offender about the risk he poses after he leaves or is expelled by the community. The SSPX's repeated failures in this regard are a matter of policy. 

It should also be remembered that there are two groups of criminals involved in sexual abuse: the abusers themselves, and the leaders of the community who conceal and lie about their crimes, intimidate witnesses and victims and frustrate investigation by law enforcement. The departure or expulsion of the abusers from the community does not mean the second group of criminals has been dealt with. This second group can and must be held to account for their crimes, even after the abusers themselves have left or been convicted. In the case of the SSPX, none of the leadership has been held to account for actions that enabled pedophiles to commit criminal sexual abuse of an extreme kind.  

("This coming to terms with the past must not be used to unleash additional personal antipathies against a certain Church superior or against a certain religious community."

This implies that "personal antipathies" or "additional personal antipathies," rather than just anger or concern for the victims of sexual abuse, are the motivation for the accusations made by Church Militant against the SSPX. It also implies that the accusations are targeted at the past and are not about the present. This is only a valid criticism if the accusations against the SSPX are not in fact well-supported and true. Since they are, in fact, true, personal antipathy to the SSPX is called for by the situation. Anyone who does not feel antipathy and anger towards the SSPX in these circumstances is morally and psychologically defective. The failure to express or even to accept such feelings is one of the worst aspects of Bp. Schneider's lamentable and sordid production. 

Dr. John R. T. Lamont is a Canadian philosopher and theologian. He studied at the Dominican College in Ottawa and Oxford University, and has taught philosophy and theology in Catholic seminaries. He is the author of a number of scholarly papers and of the book Divine Faith.

View our complete SSPX coverage here
*Bishop Schneider pleads for fairness in SSPX sexual abuse accusations
Emotional neutrality is necessary for a fair judgment.

https://www.lifesitenews.com/opinion/bishop-schneider-pleads-for-fairness-in-sspx-sexual-abuse-accusations                    

Bishop Athanasius Schneider, December 3, 2020

Recently, one could observe that the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) has been made from various sides a target of attacks in connection with cases of sexual abuse. The detection and transparent processing of cases of pedophilia should be done in a necessarily objective and thoroughgoing manner, irrespective of the persons or ecclesiastical communities concerned and without making any exceptions.
However, one could get the impression that the SPPX would be the only Catholic religious organization that had to respond to such accusations. It is difficult to simply dismiss the impression that some of the accusations were conducted in a biased manner.

If the SSPX is accused of failing to prevent and effectively manage cases of pedophilia on the part of its members, then for the sake of fairness, all dioceses around the world and all religious communities should as well be investigated, where in some cases one could find shortcomings maybe to the same or greater extent. Furthermore, it is part of fundamental justice and logic that religious communities or dioceses cannot be held responsible for the atrocities which their members or employees committed after they had been separated or dismissed from these communities. If one were to follow such logic, the Augustinian order, for example, would have to be held responsible for the anti-Semitic statements of Martin Luther, their former member. In coming to terms with atrocities committed by clerics, one should be guided only by truth and justice, without regard to the person.

On the other hand, this coming to terms with the past must not be used to unleash additional personal antipathies against a certain Church superior or against a certain religious community. Emotional neutrality is necessary for a fair judgment. The Word of God should be the guiding principle here: “If you are angry, do not sin!” (Eph. 4:26) and “The anger of man does not produce the righteousness of God.” (James 1:20)

1He’s a good liar’
Victims accuse Bp. Fellay of deceit.

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/spotlight-hes-a-good-liar                     

Michael Voris, May 21, 2020
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20:35
For the first time, the parents of young victims of SSPX priest Fr. Frédéric Abbet are going public, revealing their dealings with Society leadership — including Bp. Bernard Fellay, whom they accuse of deceiving them repeatedly. Meanwhile, Fr. Abbet — convicted of child sex crimes in 2017 and sentenced to five years in prison in Belgium — fled to Switzerland and roams free in the town of Fully.
Watch this follow-up exposé on sex abuse and cover-up in the Society of St. Pius X by clicking on the video above.

Read more about the Fr. Abbet case: "Criminal Negligence by the SSPX."
Related articles and videos: [ALL ARE AVAILABLE IN THE JANUARY 24/JULY 1 SEQUEL TO THIS FILE] 
Spotlight—SSPX: 'Sympathetic to Perverts'
Spotlight: 'He's a Good Liar'
Spotlight: SSPX and McCarrick 2.0
SSPX Priest to Bp. Fellay: Stop Protecting Predators
SSPX Cone of Silence
SSPX Gave Pedophile Repeated Access to Boys
SSPX Bishops Ordained Known Gay Predator
SSPX Admits Abuse
SSPX, Police Protected Child Rapist
Criminal Negligence by the SSPX
SSPX Whistleblower Speaks
Church Militant's Response to SSPX
The Vortex: Not Looking Good at All
The Vortex: You Call That a Response?
The Vortex: A Gold Mine of Abuse
KBI Tip Line for SSPX Clergy Abuse
Church Militant's Action Arm for Whistleblowers, Investigators
2SSPX pedophile priest arrested in Switzerland
Justice catches up with Fr. Frédéric Abbet.

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-pedophile-priest-arrested-in-switzerland                      

Christine Niles, Valais, Switzerland, June 13, 2020
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Abbet never could have abused boys had it not been for the direct actions of Bp. Bernard Fellay
Bp. Bernard Fellay, superior general from 1994–2018
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2:13
Three weeks after Church Militant broke the news that a pedophile priest of the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) was roaming free in Switzerland, authorities have arrested Fr. Frédéric Abbet.
According to Swiss media outlet Le Nouvelliste, Abbet was arrested by local authorities in Valais Friday.
As Church Militant reported in our May 21 Spotlight: 'He's a Good Liar,' [page 3] a Belgian court found Abbet guilty of child sex crimes in 2017, sentencing him to five years in prison. After requesting that he be allowed to serve out his sentence in his native Switzerland, however, Abbet ended up walking free, living in the town of Fully and even seen taking his nephews to a local swimming pool.

Church Militant contacted local authorities in Fully in May to ask why Abbet had never served his prison time, as required by Belgian law, and why a convicted pedophile was allowed to roam freely in their town. Officials did not comment.

According to local reporter Gilles Berreau, who contacted Belgian officials for an explanation, Abbet's failure to serve out his sentence was the result of an administrative oversight; officials had never followed up with authorities in Switzerland to ensure Abbet served out his sentence there.

Various officials in Belgium seemed to deflect responsibility when questioned about the lack of follow-up. Sophie Van Bree, spokewoman for the Brussels trial court, said no arrest of Abbet had ever been carried out in Belgium.

The Belgian court responsible for enforcing sentences claimed it was not responsible for carrying out Abbet's sentence, as he had been given permission to serve out his prison time in Switzerland. It also claimed that it was the public prosecutor's duty to ensure his sentence was carried out.
And officials in Sion, capital of the canton of Valais, said they had no record of any pending transfer request for the execution of Abbet's sentence in Switzerland.

After Le Nouvelliste published an article Friday citing Church Militant's exposé on Abbet, Belgian authorities issued a request to local authorities in Valais to arrest Abbet.

"I am very satisfied that in the space of a few hours we were able to take the necessary measures and place this person in detention," said Frédéric Favre, in charge of security in Valais. "It required a lot of work to clarify the situation and the existing legal possibilities."

The parents of Abbet's victims — Carlo and Florence Peeters, whose son Nicolas was abused; and Viktoria Weber, whose sons Richard and Edmond were abused — went public for the first time in Church Militant's Spotlight, expressing their sorrow, anger and frustration that Abbet had never received justice for the crimes he committed against their boys.
Abbet's abuse never could have happened had it not been for the direct actions of Bp. Bernard Fellay, superior general of the SSPX for 24 years. In spite of a 10-year ban placed on Abbet forbidding him from being around children, Fellay violated the ban within two months, assigning him to live under the same roof as a boys' dorm in Brussels, where Abbet sexually assaulted multiple victims, one as young as six years old.

[image: image8.jpg]



Fr. Benoît Wailliez withheld crucial evidence for six years from authorities

According to a 2017 Brussels report, "The entire file has shown heavy dysfunction within the Society of St. Pius X."
Fellay's actions — along with the negligence and lack of oversight of priors Fr. Jürgen Wegner and later Fr. Benoît Wailliez, who withheld incriminating information and evidence for six years — led the court to accuse the SSPX of "criminogenic" behavior, a French term denoting the enabling of pathologically criminal conduct.

It also led the prosecutor to thunder in court that "The SSPX should have been put on trial!" and not just Abbet. And three European victims' rights groups issued a scathing joint statement excoriating the SSPX for its failure to help the victims' families, continually putting up roadblocks and obstructing justice while going out of its way to protect the institution.

Father Christian Thouvenot, secretary for the SSPX, confirmed with Le Nouvelliste that Abbet had been expelled from the Society.

Read more about the Abbet case here [Immediately below].
Criminal negligence by the SSPX 
European case exposes complicity of Society in abuse.

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-deflection                       

Christine Niles, April 29, 2020
5/9/2020: This article was updated with further details about Fr. Abbet's current whereabouts.
The latest statement by the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) — the third so far since Church Militant released a first-of-its-kind exposé detailing the decades of abuse and cover-up in its ranks [Immediately below, page 9]— again fails to offer a detailed refutation of any abuse case our investigation revealed.

While there is a great deal to be criticized in the statement, we note in particular the SSPX's claim that our exposé reports on several abuse cases in Europe "mostly using truncated accounts taken from newspapers or blogs."
The Society should take note that Church Militant is in direct contact with victims and witnesses in Europe, as well as other parts of the world, and thus our reliance is directly from the sources, rather than from accounts derived merely "from newspapers or blogs."

Contrary to the SSPX's attempt to paint this and other European cases of SSPX abuse and cover-up as no more than a "media trial" by Church Militant, there was an actual trial in Belgium where the prosecutor in court not only publicly accused the SSPX of complicity in endangering and harming children, he insisted the Society itself should've been put on trial.

"The Society of St. Pius X should have been in the dock [tried in court]," argued Prosecutor Stéphane Lempereur on the final day of trial of now-convicted pederast Fr. Frédéric Abbet, SSPX in 2017, sentenced to prison for abusing boys at the Society's L'École de Notre Dame academy in Brussels in 2010–2011.

"Their responsibility is frighteningly significant," he said. "We can't always be covering up matters and allowing a predator around children."

According to a 2017 Brussels report, "The entire file has shown heavy dysfunction within the Society of St. Pius X."
The most damning indictment came against SSPX priest Fr. Benoît Wailliez, then-prior of the SSPX chapel where Abbet lived — under the same roof as the SSPX school. Taped audio recordings from six years prior were produced in court, with Wailliez called as witness, revealing that Wailliez had been made aware of Abbet's predilection for boys at the time, but failed to take any steps to keep him away from children.

Wailliez was excoriated for withholding the audio evidence, which would have supported the victims' claims, in his attempt to hide his own complicity.

The audio recordings include incriminating statements made by Abbet, in which he told Wailliez, in discussing the 2005/06 allegations, "I went to see Bishop Fellay. Ever since that 2006 affair, it's as if it had triggered in me ... er ... I have temptations."
Elsewhere in the taped conversation, he made what appeared to be a confession about his abuse of three young boys at the Brussels academy: "Some things might have happened."

According to the mother of one of the boys abused by Abbet, who spoke directly with Church Militant, Wailliez actually placed Abbet in charge of the boys' dorms — not only giving him full and complete access to the students, but also giving him authority over them, a role he would use to take sexual advantage of victims as young as six.

Even worse, Abbet came to Brussels with a known history of abuse allegations and a 10-year ban on being around children — a ban that was almost immediately violated by then-Superior General Bp. Bernard Fellay.

10-Year Ban on Fr. Abbet
An SSPX tribunal in Switzerland had tried Abbet in ecclesiastical court in 2006 for abuse allegations arising from a boys camp he ran in Valais some years earlier, as well as abuse charges from Abbet's time in Argentina. The tribunal was the result of the SSPX convincing the distraught parents of the victim not to go to media, promising they would "handle" the matter.

Instead, the canonical court set up what critics have called a show trial that ended up acquitting Abbet — but it was not a declaration of innocence: The ecclesiastical judge imposed a 10-year-ban on Abbet from being around children, abjuring then-Superior General Bp. Bernard Fellay not to allow Abbet around children under any circumstances for at least a decade.
What did Fellay do? Within two months of that decree, Fellay announced the assignment of Abbet to the Brussels priory — within the same compound and under the same roof as the SSPX academy, with an interior corridor linking Abbet's living quarters to the boys' dorms, which he would use to sneak into the students' beds and abuse them.

"In 2006, [Abbet] had been canonically tried for the events of 2005 in Switzerland and, despite his acquittal, the ecclesiastical judge had ordered the Superior General, Bp. Fellay, to place him 'during the said 10-year period in posts of apostolate which would keep him from all promiscuity cum pueris and adulescentibus ["with children and adolescents"]'" (canonical judgment of June 6, 2006)," according to a joint statement published by three European victims' rights groups.
"Two months later, Bp. Fellay assigned Frédéric Abbet in Brussels under the same roof as the school," it notes.

The new assignment was announced in August, to take effect in September, Fellay sending Abbet to live at Rue de la concorde in Brussels, a facility that combines the headquarters of the BeNeLux district (Belgium, The Netherlands and Luxembourg), the local Brussels priory and the boarding school (Notre-Dame de la Sainte Espérance).

His immediate assignment after the canonical decree is evidenced in a Sept. 3, 2006 letter written by then-prior Fr. Jurgen Wegner (now the U.S. district superior) announcing the imminent arrival of Fr. Abbet to the community.

"Our patience has been rewarded!" writes Wegner, announcing the new priest in Brussels. "This will relieve me somewhat, allowing me to visit more frequently the other priories and chapels in the district."
[image: image9.png]also take care of the countless small tasks which are part of the daily life of a priory. The priest community has
also grown as the fourth priest we have been waiting for a long time has joined us. It is Father Frédéric Abbet.
Our patience has been rewarded! He was ordained two years ago and has been stationed in Argentina and
Colombia. Back in Europe, he will assist me with many administrative tasks and will support the confreres for
the apostolate in Brussels. This will relieve me somewha, allowing me to visit more frequently the other priories
and chapels in the district. T look forward to having more time to spend with each of you in a more personal way.




Excerpt from Fr. Jurgen Wegner's Sept. 3, 2006 letter announcing Fr. Frédéric Abbet's arrival, and acknowledging it would free up his time to travel to "other priories and chapels in the district."

Father Jurgen Wegner's complicity in Abbet's abuse cannot be ignored. District superior of the BeNeLux region and prior of the Brussels chapel at the time, Wegner was made aware of Abbet's track record beforehand and was told to exercise oversight over the priest.
In spite of this, Wegner allowed Abbet to hear children's confessions from day one, often leaving Abbet alone while Wegner traveled for various duties and assignments.

Victims' Rights Groups Condemn SSPX

Such criminal negligence by the SSPX so shocked victims' rights groups that three jointly published a statement condemning the Society for its handling of the Abbet case.

Contrary to the SSPX's claim that it "fully cooperated with authorities" in the Abbet case — a claim made as recently as days ago in its second statement in response to Church Militant (a statement that has since been taken down) — its track record was one of stonewalling and putting up "roadblocks" during trial:

When the families of the Belgian victims learned from other sources of [Fr. Abbet's] onerous past, the SSPX set up roadblocks in various ways: by first refusing to put them in contact with the Swiss victim or even to give them his identity, then requiring them to go through a lawyer specially hired for this purpose — a lawyer of a very particular kind: a parishioner of the Geneva chapel of the SSPX, he behaved more like a devoté of Bp. Fellay than a lawyer, treating the Belgian families with extreme contempt and systematically obstructing their contact with the Swiss victim. We do not see cooperation with justice there.

The final court judgment also condemns the role of the SSPX in Abbet's access to children, the panel of judges accusing the SSPX of fostering "criminogenic" behavior (a term meaning the promotion of repeated criminality).
"In their judgment, the appellate judges described this contact with children as 'criminogenic' (La Capitale article, 14.XII.2017)," the statement notes. "It is therefore only by carefully suppressing the opinions of four magistrates, the King's prosecutor and three judges that the Society of St. Pius X manages to give itself the appearance of having taken proper action."

Church Militant has since learned that Abbet requested to serve out his prison sentence in Switzerland rather than in Belgium, a request granted by the court — but instead of spending a single day in prison, Abbet is wandering freely in the town of Fully, in southern Switzerland, having fled Belgium before his conviction was handed down.
On questioning the SSPX, they informed the victims' families that Abbet has been expelled from its ranks, but offered no insight as to his whereabouts.

New Victims, New Allegations

Ever since our Spotlight exposé, not only has Church Militant been inundated with public and private messages of support, but more victims have contacted us revealing even further allegations of abuse and cover-up. These victims have thanked us profusely for finally giving them a voice, and plead with us to continue exposing the abuse and cover-up which has been allowed to fester hidden within the ranks of the Society for too long.

We are committed to doing so.
The Society itself admits it has been inundated with calls, emails, messages demanding accountability, and that new allegations have surfaced against the SSPX. In a Facebook post on the SSPX Facebook page (a post that was removed without explanation Wednesday), a note reads:
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Since Friday, the U.S. District has received a voluminous number of e-mails,
phone calls, and social media posts regarding its commitment to
transparency, including additional information regarding allegations of abuse.
In order to ensure the highest degree of feasible accuracy, the U.S. District is
working through the information it has in order to verify its reliability while
also cooperating with the appropriate legal authorities to verify which cases
the District can comment on at this time.




"Since Friday, the U.S. District has received a voluminous number of e-mails, phone calls, and social media posts regarding its commitment to transparency, including additional information regarding allegations of abuse," reads the post. "[T]he U.S. District is working through the information it has in order to verify its reliability while also cooperating with the appropriate legal authorities to verify which cases the District can comment on at this time."
One family member of a European victim of SSPX clergy wrote to Church Militant:

The SSPX's old game of Divides Ut Regnas ["Divide and Conquer"] is up now: It doesn't work anymore. The victims know how to use the internet and intercontinental telecoms. Victims and their relatives throughout the world are finally making contact (it's a premiere) and, as the national motto of Belgium says, L'union fait la force — which basically means the same as your country's national motto Ex unitate vires ["From unity strength"].

To this day SSPX leadership has yet to acknowledge the role it played in endangering children, whether by Fellay's immediate violation of the SSPX ecclesiastical court's own ban on Abbet, or by Wegner's actions immediately allowing Abbet to hear children's confessions and his failure to supervise the priest, or by Wailliez's withholding of incriminating evidence for six years. Instead, the Society repeats the empty boilerplate it has always asserted since the 2017 conviction: "The SSPX cooperated fully with the authorities."

The Jan. 10, 2018 statement by three victims' rights groups regarding the Fr. Abbet case is published in full here (Church Militant working translation):
After the recent conviction on appeal (December 13) of the traditionalist priest Frédéric Abbet for acts of pedophilia in Belgium, the SSPX (Society of St. Pius X) published a press release in which it congratulates itself for its role in this case. AVREF (Aide aux Victimes des dérives de mouvements Religieux en Europe et à leurs Familles), the association La Parole Libérée and the Swiss SAPEC group (Support for Abused Persons in a Relationship of Religious Authority) wish to recall a few of the documented facts.

In his indictment, the Advocate General strangled the Society of St. Pius X, going so far as to say it "should have been in the dock" (article in "The Last Hour," 24.X.2017). Let us recall that, if the SSPX provided evidence allowing the conviction of Fr. Frédéric Abbet, it was only between the first trial and the appeal that it took this step. During the investigation, it withheld information, hiding the fact that Frédéric Abbet had been implicated in Valais since 2005 for similar facts. AVREF has convincing documents on this subject.
When the families of the Belgian victims learned from other sources of this onerous past, the SSPX set up roadblocks in various ways: by first refusing to put them in contact with the Swiss victim or even to give them his identity, then requiring them to go through a lawyer specially hired for this purpose — a lawyer of a very particular kind: a parishioner of the Geneva chapel of the SSPX, he behaved more like a devoté of Bp. Fellay than a lawyer, treating the Belgian families with extreme contempt and systematically obstructing their contact with the Swiss victim. We do not see cooperation with justice there.

On the contrary, the Congregation of Écône [SSPX seminary in Switzerland] has been questioned, and it must be, for having placed Fr. Frédéric Abbet under the same roof as his Brussels boarding school, when the Society itself suspected him of abuse following this 2005 case. In their judgment, the appellate judges described this contact with children as "criminogenic" ["fostering or promoting repeated criminality"] (La Capitale article, 14.XII.2017). It is therefore only by carefully suppressing the opinions of four magistrates, the King's prosecutor and three judges that the Society of St. Pius X manages to give itself the appearance of having taken proper action.

The signatory associations also note the marked negligence of Fr. Benoît Wailliez, who was specifically and urgently warned by a student's mother of the risk of pedophilia on the part of Frédéric Abbet and who took absolutely no action. AVREF has a copy of this statement. Also remember that Fr. Benoît Wailliez waited six years to produce important evidence during an appeal hearing.
Finally, the signatory associations note that the question is not only that Fr. Frédéric Abbet was prohibited from being in contact with children for 10 years. In 2006, he had been canonically tried for the events of 2005 in Switzerland and, despite his acquittal, the ecclesiastical judge had ordered the Superior General, Bp. Fellay, to place him "during the said 10-year period in posts of apostolate which would keep him from all promiscuity cum pueris and adulescentibus ["with children and adolescents"]" (canonical judgment of June 6, 2006). Two months later, Bp. Fellay assigned Frédéric Abbet in Brussels under the same roof as the school.

Now, the Society of St. Pius X is preparing to canonically judge Fr. Frédéric Abbet for the second time, this time with a mandate from the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith. Are the Vatican authorities aware that they are administering justice on their behalf by a bishop who has trampled on a canonical judgment whose ink was barely dry? How can we trust such "justice"? It is time for the Roman authorities to understand that they risk further offending the victims and destroying the credibility of what they present as their "fight" against sexual abuse.

In any event, AVREF, La parole libéré and the SAPEC Group stand by the victims and their families to advise them, either psychologically or in canonical or civil procedures. After this weighty questioning of the SSPX, it is inevitable it will assume its responsibilities, criminal and civil.

AVREF recalls that it dealt with the Frédéric Abbet case in its "SSPX Black Book" ["Le Livre Noir de la Fraternité Sacerdotale Saint-Pie X"] and announces that it will publish an augmented version of this Black Book in early 2018.

January 10, 2018

The SSPX Black Book presents in itself (in the words of U.S. District Spokesman James Vogel) a "gold mine" of abuse allegations, worthy of further investigation by any intrepid journalists willing to dig.

Read this article in French.
SSPX: ‘Sympathetic to perverts’

On a hidden history of abuse and cover-up.

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/spotlight-sympathetic-to-perverts                       

Christine Niles, April 22, 2020
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Christine Niles uncovers the long, dark history of sex abuse and cover-up in the Society of St. Pius X. Click on the above to watch our exposé.
The full transcript of the Spotlight can be accessed here, although we strongly encourage viewers to watch the video report above for full context, as it contains images of emails, witness statements, etc. (French transcript available here; German transcript available here)
3SSPX pedophile arrested in France
Fr. Pierre de Maillard accused of abusing 19 victims.

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/another-sspx-pedo-priest-arrested                       

Christine Niles, Montgardin, France, October 16, 2020
Days after Church Militant broke the news [immediately below] that longtime SSPX priest Fr. Pierre de Maillard was suspended for allegedly abusing more than a dozen victims, he has been arrested in France and taken into custody to await criminal trial.
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SSPX retreat house in Montgardin, Gap, France, nicknamed the "Golden Prison," [subject of a 2016 Swedish documentary film] where sexual predators are sent for "prayer and penance"

According to French media, officials in La Roche-sur-Yon in the Vendée made the announcement Thursday (in the Catholic calendar, the Feast of St. Teresa of Avila, doctor of the Church).
"Indicted by the investigating magistrate, he was remanded in custody" Wednesday, according to the prosecution's statement, after first being arrested Monday.

According to French law, police may arrest a person and keep him in custody for a maximum of 48 hours. They are required to release the suspect if no charges are pressed. Thus, Maillard was initially arrested on Monday, detained for 48 hours, and then transferred to another jail Wednesday after charges were handed down.

He was found in Montgardin, approximately 10 hours' drive east of La Roche-sur-Yon. Maillard was staying at an SSPX retreat house nicknamed the "Golden Prison," known to house problem priests.

A priest of nearly 30 years, he had been sent to Montgardin earlier this summer to serve out a period of "prayer and penance" after the allegations of abuse arose — the typical modus operandi of the Society, which has taken the same course of action with numerous sexual predators. Many are reinstated to active ministry, where they often go on to abuse again — unless the law gets involved.

According to the prosecution's statement, Maillard has been charged for "rapes by a person in authority, rapes of minors under 15 years of age and sexual assaults on minors under the age of 15 and over 15 by a person having authority and corruption of minors committed between January 1, 2006 and May 31, 2020 in Vendée and Charente-Maritime," in western France.

Le Dauphiné Libéré, a newspaper in wide circulation in Gap, where Montgardin is located, reported that the judicial investigation was launched Wednesday.

Two complaints against the 53-year-old priest had been filed in July. As Church Militant first reported, Fr. Laurent Ramé, Maillard's former superior at Our Lady of the Rosary priory in Saint-Germain-de-Prinçay, Vendée, went to police this summer after parents of alleged victims came to him to report abuse.
Ramé bucked SSPX protocol and chose not to go to French district headquarters first (as mandated by Society guidelines) and instead went to law enforcement (the brigade de gendarmerie in Chantonnay). Afterwards Ramé informed district headquarters in Suresnes, just outside Paris.

The matter already in police hands, Superior General Davide Pagliarani had little choice but to suspend Maillard, quietly sending him to Montgardin during his suspension. Most of the locals had no idea an accused sexual predator was living in their community.

"The aggressor must pay," said Fr. Ramé to local media.

Bishop Georges Colomb of La Rochelle expressed "great sadness for the young victims and their families," according to the report.

When Church Militant published the Oct. 10 report breaking the news about Maillard's suspension and the criminal investigation, a French translation of the article was published simultaneously and sent to multiple local and national French media outlets, which immediately expressed an interest in the story.
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Church Militant has also learned that the French article was posted that same day on Le Forum Catholique, a French traditionalist website with Catholics of all stripes, from the SSPX, FSSP, ICK and other groups. But by Sunday, the site had pulled the report — but not before it had been clicked on more than 300 times.

"Then another message was posted in the same thread complaining about censorship on the Forum Catholique and naming the source of the erased report as Church Militant, although it didn't provide a link this time," said a reliable European source who frequents the site. "This other message was eventually redacted and even the mention of Church Militant was removed."

"Then other messages appeared saying this censorship was ridiculous because anyone could surf to Church Militant or L'Envers du Décor or AVREF and find out about sex abuse in the SSPX," the source added. "Eventually, the Forum Catholique was taken offline for a while and the whole thread was removed, maybe under pressure from Suresnes/Menzingen."
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Another reliable source in Europe who also frequents the forum told Church Militant: "There was no more closing Pandora's box: Word was spreading fast, via private e-mails, Facebook accounts, texting/SMS's etc. Sunday afternoon must have been a nightmarish day for the heads of the SSPX's French branch."
"Worst of all, as the news started spreading on Saturday evening, they were short of time to discuss what to do next and to deliver a warning from the pulpit at the Sunday Masses," the source continued. "It was a worst-case scenario for them."

Last week Church Militant wrote to SSPX headquarters asking if leadership had known of prior allegations against Maillard during his priesthood, and how the Society handled them. In spite of the Society's recent pledges of transparency, they offered no response.
While the SSPX website is busy reporting on Vatican scandals, it makes no mention of this disturbing scandal in its own ranks. And Superior General Fr. Davide Pagliarani carefully avoids the topic of sex abuse altogether in an Oct. 14 interview, focusing instead on criticism of Rome and other matters.

In light of Maillard's arrest and the stunningly high number of victims (many of them prepubescent), the SSPX will likely be forced to issue a public statement soon with its requisite "We will fully cooperate with authorities" message.

Maillard is being held in pre-trial detention until trial begins.

Reports will be forthcoming as more details emerge.

4SSPX priest dogged by French sex scandal
Society won’t investigate Fr. Pierre Duverger.

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-wont-investigate-accused-sexual-predator                        

Christine Niles, Sanford, Florida, August 4, 2020
A priest of the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) currently under criminal investigation for sex abuse in the United States has rape allegations going back more than a decade from France.
Father Pierre Duverger, who now serves as principal of St. Thomas More Academy in Sanford, Florida, was previously assigned in Kansas City, Missouri and would visit St. Marys, Kansas, where alleged incidents of sexual misconduct took place. In spite of knowing of these allegations for several years, the Society has never formally investigated him.
Duverger was ordained in 1995 and comes from a family of SSPX priests, with two brothers and three nephews who are SSPX clergy. His brother, Fr. Patrick Duverger, serves as district superior of the BeNeLux region (Belgium, The Netherlands and Luxembourg). Another brother, Fr. Loïc Duverger, served as superior in Africa, where he mishandled the case involving Fr. Damian Carlisle, accused by multiple boys of pedophilia. Father Loïc also served as assistant to the French district superior over the past 20 years, where he was in the shadow of a number of sex abuse cover-ups under French district superior Fr. Régis de Cacqueray.

According to an article in The Angelus, Duverger "is from a family of 11 which had the honor of being a friend of Archbishop Lefebvre's since the 1950s in Africa."

He is among multiple priests under criminal investigation by the Kansas Bureau of Investigation (KBI), which is looking into the SSPX, along with all Kansas dioceses, as part of its wider criminal probe into clergy sex abuse and cover-up.
In an email dated Dec. 14, 2019, SSPX priest Fr. Hervé de la Tour, speaking of Duverger, admits to whistleblower Jassy Jacas, "We know of several victims already," clarifying in a later email that the allegations go back as early as 2007 or 2008.
Scandal in Bordeaux

That incident, Church Militant has confirmed, involved an ongoing sexual affair with a psychologically vulnerable young woman in Bordeaux, France, engaged to be married to another man.

The situation was first alluded to on a now-defunct website devoted to exposing traditionalist clerics' crimes: "Some traditionalists in the Bordeaux region know the real reasons for the sudden departure of Father D. (SSPX): Instead of teaching a bride the catechism on engagement and marriage, he gave her very concrete lessons on matrimonial relations, with practical exercises."

The website goes on to slam SSPX leadership for later promoting Duverger:
What is a much deeper cause of scandal for souls is how such deviant behavior is followed by promotion. "The fish rots from the head," the saying goes. It is crucial to open your eyes to reality. We have seen it several times: Too often, "traditional" clerics who allow themselves sexual deviations go unpunished for a long time because the faithful idealize the priesthood and are in what is psychologically called "denial": They refuse a priori to admit the possibility that a "good priest" commits sexual offenses.

Duverger, tasked with offering marriage preparation, instead engaged in a sexual affair with the woman that lasted at least several weeks, and was known to the local SSPX sisters whom Duverger served, who complained about their priest's absence from chapel duties because he was spending time with the young woman.

According to a reliable European source, Duverger "cynically exploited the situation of weakness of that girl, who was mentally disturbed and vulnerable."

In French law, Duverger may have committed the crime of abus de faiblesse ("abuse of a vulnerable person"), punishable under section 223-15-2 of the French Criminal Code with up to "three years imprisonment and a fine of €375,000" (~$440,000). The crime involves taking psychological, emotional or physical advantage of an individual who is vulnerable "due to age, an illness, an infirmity, a physical or psychological deficiency."

When it involves taking sexual advantage of a vulnerable person, it rises to the level of rape, as the person would not truly be capable of consent. Thus Duverger's crime in this case would have been compounded.

Penalties are increased to five years behind bars and €750,000 (~$885,000) if "the offense is committed by the de facto or de jure leader of a group which pursues activities the aim or effect of which is to create, maintain or exploit the psychological or physical subjection of the people who participate in these activities."
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Fr. Marc Vernoy (L), prior of St. Thomas More Chapel in Sanford, FL, with Fr. Pierre Duverger
When the woman's parents (one of whom was an attorney who on occasion represented the SSPX) discovered Duverger was taking sexual advantage of their daughter, they considered filing a criminal complaint for rape. The family — longtime devotées of the Society — eventually decided not to on the advice of another SSPX priest.

Church Militant has learned that this priest has since come to bitterly regret his counsel after learning of later allegations of sexual assault leveled against Duverger in the United States.
Shuffling Predator Priests
At the time they became aware of Duverger's offenses, then-superior general Bp. Bernard Fellay and then-French district superior Fr. Régis de Cacqueray failed to report him to police, as required by French law — a violation that can result in up to three years in prison.

This attempt to handle the matter internally, while consistent with the track record of the SSPX, was a direct violation of French law. According to art. 434-1 of France's criminal code:

For anyone who is aware of a crime whose effects can still be prevented or limited, or whose perpetrators are likely to commit new crimes which could be prevented, failure to inform the judicial or administrative authorities is punishable with three years' imprisonment and a fine of €45,000.

A handful of exceptions are made for spouses, family members, health professionals and social workers, but there are no exceptions for clergy.

Both Fellay and de Cacqueray similarly failed to report SSPX priest Fr. Christophe Roisnel in 2011 when they learned he had raped several women at an SSPX school, instead choosing to send him to a monastery in Morgon in Beaujolais for a couple of years of "prayer and penance."
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Fr. Christophe Roisnel, convicted of rape and torture and sentenced to 19 years in prison

Thanks to civil authorities, however, Fr. Christophe Roisnel was arrested, convicted and sentenced for rape and torture before Fellay could reinstate him to active ministry. The priest is currently serving 19 years behind bars.
Fellay's modus operandi of sending away sex abusers for brief periods of "prayer and penance" before reinstating them to active ministry, where they often go on to abuse again, is typical of the practice of so many bishops before the sex abuse scandal exploded in 2002, when the Boston Globe revealed that Cdl. Bernard Law was shuffling around hundreds of predator priests, after sending them away for brief stints in rehabilitation centers like St. Luke Institute in Maryland or St. John Vianney Center in Pennsylvania.

Those priests would go on to abuse again — and the case is no different with the SSPX.

For instance, pedophile priest Fr. Philippe Peignot was able to abuse again, after the superior general first sent him to do "prayer and penance" at Lourdes before reinstating him to priestly ministry; and convicted pedophile Fr. Frédéric Abbet was also able to abuse boys again, even after the SSPX's own canonical tribunal banned him from being around children — a ban Fellay violated almost immediately by assigning Abbet to live at a chapel that shared the same roof as a boys' dorm.

After the parents sought justice, Abbet was convicted in criminal court and sentenced to five years in prison.
Three weeks after Church Militant's May 21 Spotlight investigation revealed Abbet had never served out his sentence, he was arrested in Switzerland and is currently behind bars.

Fellay's actions towards Duverger followed the same pattern, with the same results. Shortly after the sex scandal in Bordeaux, Fellay reassigned Duverger — citing "heart-related" health reasons — to Our Lady of Guadalupe Monastery in New Mexico, where he served out two years in "prayer and penance."

In 2010, Fellay promoted Duverger to the role of personal secretary to then-U.S. District Superior Fr. Arnaud Rostand in Platte City, Missouri, U.S. headquarters of the SSPX.

At some point he was assigned to the communications team for the U.S. district, working alongside James Vogel and Louis Tofari — a surprising promotion considering the rape allegations.

In 2011, only three year after the sex scandal, Duverger was allowed to officiate as assistant priest at the first Mass of his nephew, Amaury Graff. In a strange twist of irony, Graff was assigned to Bordeaux after his uncle, Fr. Duverger, left — and once there was disturbed to learn of his uncle's affair with the young woman.
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In the United States, Duverger spent time serving at Assumption Chapel in St. Marys, Kansas, where he would hear confessions and reportedly prey on vulnerable young women, going on to allegedly sexually assault them. Several of his accusers have been interviewed by the KBI.
On April 30, Church Militant sent the following queries to Fr. Jürgen Wegner, current U.S. district superior:

Fr. Wegner,
Hello. I'm requesting an answer to the following questions:

Is it true that you are transferring Fr. Pierre Duverger to a new assignment? This is what we have heard.

If so, where?

When?

Why?

Your public statements claim you are committed to transparency. Will you send Fr. Duverger back to Kansas to be questioned by authorities who are investigating him as part of their criminal investigation?

Why did St. Thomas More Priory publish a statement falsely claiming Duverger was not under criminal investigation?

Why did that same statement give the impression that Duverger was entirely innocent?

As proof of your commitment to transparency, will you publicly issue a statement admitting that Fr. Duverger is under criminal investigation and that you know of several allegations against him (as you have already admitted in private emails)?

Church Militant never received a response.

While Duverger remains principal at St. Thomas More in Sanford, Florida, Church Militant has learned that several families will not be returning in the new school year because of Duverger's continued presence there and their unhappiness with the way Society leadership has handled his case.

Church Militant has confirmed that at least two teachers have quit over Duverger.
Father Wegner, who admitted to Jacas that he never investigated allegations of abuse against Duverger, is being reassigned to Austria.
5SSPX gave pedophile repeated access to boys
Vatican corrects Bp. Fellay’s bad actions.

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-gave-pedophile-access-to-boys                         

Christine Niles, May 5, 2020
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Fr. Philippe Peignot, found guilty of abusing multiple boys

Father Philippe Peignot has a 40-year track record of pedophilia, stretching back to 1978 — but most disturbing is the way leadership in the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) repeatedly granted him access to young boys to abuse again.
One of his victims, André (a pseudonym), whose story was covered in the 2016 Swedish documentary Golden Prison, spoke with Church Militant.
"I've done everything I could, but this predator is still free and around children," he said.

A softspoken man in his mid-forties, André explained how the abuse started — in 1988, when he was 11, going on to detail how over the course of decades SSPX leadership failed to act adequately against Peignot, repeatedly betraying its promise to restrict the pedophile's access to children.

Peignot, who had been ordained for the SSPX in 1982, had come to Christ the King Priory in Brussels that year in 1988 — fresh from a one-year stint in Lourdes, where he had been ordered by then-Superior General Franz Schmidberger (with the knowledge of longtime France district superior Fr. Paul Aulagnier) to do a year of prayer and penance for his sexual abuse of five boys in Champagne-Ardenne, where he had been stationed from 1985–1987.

Among those victims was Vincent Lambert, the famous quadriplegic who became a central figure in the end-of-life debate in France, his Catholic family fighting a protracted court battle to keep their disabled son alive against the orders of the hospital, which wanted to remove his feeding tube. 
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Vincent Lambert, the late quadriplegic at the heart of the end-of-life debate in France. Lambert was a victim of Fr. Philippe Peignot's abuse.

The family lost their legal battle in July 2019, when France's highest court ruled in favor of the hospital. Vincent died nine days after his feeding tube was removed.
While media coverage noted the car accident that landed Lambert in the hospital, almost none mentioned how the accident came about: a troubled existence involving drinking and drugs, the result of the abuse he suffered at the hands of the SSPX priest when he was a boy, culminating in the car crash while he was driving intoxicated.

Peignot has admitted to his abuse of Lambert.

"I recognized my share of responsibility in the [Vincent] Philippon-Lambert case and in the end, I accepted the restriction of activites imposed on me," he wrote in a 2013 document obtained by Church Militant, in which Peignot denied the abuse allegations brought by André, who claims the priest sexually assaulted him repeatedly from 1988 to 1989, in the SSPX priory in Brussels, Belgium.
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Fr. Franz Schmidberger, former superior general, who went back on his own ban of Peignot and allowed him to lead youth scout camps

André's Abuse

According to André's written testimony of abuse, found on pp. 11–13 of Le Livre Noir de la Fraternité Sacerdotale Saint-Pie X ("The Black Book of the SSPX"), Peignot would hold Catechism lessons on Saturdays with a small group of boys, and afterwards would often invite André alone into his office. The priest also helped lead the junior scouts organization of which André was a part.

In order to curry favor with the 11-year-old, he gave him kid-sized Mass items to play with, and even allowed him to handle Peignot's Mass kit, which contained a consecrated chalice, ciborium and paten. The priest would call him by the nickname "my little priest" — a moniker the boy disliked.
In the beginning, the priest would play with him by sliding him down his legs, picking him up into his lap, where he pushed him against his private parts before letting him slide. He also at times caressed André and kissed his face — actions that caused revulsion in the boy. But his parents, who were deeply involved in the SSPX, insisted that he be obedient and respectful to the priest, an authority figure they entirely trusted. Thus André felt obligated to allow the priest to continue with his signs of "affection," even though they caused him disgust.

The overt abuse began one day in the priest's office, when he invited André to sit on his lap and showed him his smoking pipe. It was during this time he slid his hand up André's thigh and fondled his genitals.

Similar abuse continued on multiple occasions over the course of a year, the priest at times authoritatively ordering André into his office, the boy feeling as if he had no choice but to obey.

The most serious assault took place in Peignot's car. He had persuaded André's parents to let him take the boy to la Chapelle Saint-Aubain, the SSPX chapel in Namur, one of the parishes he served. During the drive and without warning, he lifted his cassock to reveal an erect penis and shoved André's head into his lap.

"He lifted his soutane and wanted to force me to perform fellatio on him," André wrote. "He was violent and making movements with his hips."
Struggling against the priest, the boy managed to break free, slipping through the car seats and taking refuge in the backseat. The priest nearly lost control of the car, swerving several times on the road.
"I was terrified, and threatened to jump from the car if he tried anything," André wrote.

He told his parents when he came home about what happened, but they refused to believe the SSPX priest would have deliberately attempted to abuse their son, dismissing the incident as merely an accident and the result of misunderstanding.
André, still required to attend Saturday Catechism lessons and junior scouts with the priest, struggling to cope with his abuse, became a troubled youth, soon becoming violent and turning to alcohol. He sought every means to escape Peignot, while his parents insisted he continue with his lessons, refusing to believe an SSPX priest was capable of abuse.
After an argument with his parents, André even threatened to jump from the second-floor balcony of his family home — only for his mother to call Peignot for help, who manipulatively told him he was "causing pain to his mother."

The last time Peignot touched André would be in 1989, at summer scout camp, the priest persuading his parents to send him in spite of his protests.

During one of the night games played by the scouts, when André was hiding alone in the woods, Peignot followed him, creeping up from behind. Taking him by surprise, the priest forcefully lifted him off the ground and thrust his hand inside André's shorts to masturbate him. André struggled, fighting him off and landing a strong punch to the priest's gut. Peignot let go and André took off running. The priest never touched him again.

SSPX Inaction

"I first reported the abuse to France's district superior in December 1990, Fr. Paul Aulagnier," André told Church Militant. "He looked more annoyed than surprised."

André would later learn that the two priests had been friends. Aulagnier had been aware of Peignot's abuse of five boys in his prior assignment in Champagne-Ardenne, from 1985–87.
Aulagnier reported Peignot to Schmidberger in Dec. 1990, but Peignot stayed on at the Brussels priory, with apparently no action taken against him.

Incidentally, Aulagnier is considered a towering figure in French traditionalism, among the first to join Abp. Marcel Lefebvre in 1969. Lefebvre appointed him district superior in the all-important French district for nearly 20 years, from 1976–1994, and Aulagnier was widely thought to be one of the bishops Lefebvre was going to consecrate in 1988. Aulagnier was eventually expelled from the Society in 2004 for publicly supporting the Apostolic Union Saint Jean-Marie Vianney, a group of traditionalist Brazilian clergy who broke ranks with the SSPX to be in full communion with Rome. He is now a key figure in the Institute of the Good Shepherd, a society of apostolic life established in 2005 under Pope Benedict that offers the traditional liturgy.

After months of no response from SSPX leadership in 1990, André wrote to then-Superior General Franz Schmidberger requesting information on what actions would be taken against Peignot.
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Excerpt of André's letter to Fr. Franz Schmidberger
While André's parents at this point believed Peignot had inappropriately touched their son, they trusted Society leadership would appropriately handle the matter.
Schmidberger answered André in a letter explaining the Society was aware of Peignot's abuse and had issued a monitum (a canonical warning) against Peignot. He also promised that Peignot would never be allowed around children again, a promise André believed — until he spotted a poster almost 20 years later featuring the priest leading a boy scout camp.
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Bp. Bernard Fellay, former superior general, who lifted the ban on Fr. Peignot, allowing him to lead scout camps

IMAGE NOT DISPLAYING

Poster featuring Fr. Peignot (top left) leading a boys scout camp in 2004 — contrary to the promises of Superior General Franz Schmidberger, who had promised André in 1991 that Peignot would never be allowed around children again

It was an official poster produced by the SSPX, for the Charles de Foucauld scouts group in Conflans Sainte-Honorine, in the northwestern suburbs of Paris. It showed a photo of Peignot amidst a collage of photos of young boys.
André was furious.

He wrote a strongly worded letter to Bp. Bernard Fellay in 2008, who by then had succeeded Schmidberger as superior general. Fellay responded in July citing ignorance of the matter and apologizing for the oversight. "The facts you relate took place before my first mandate as superior general, and when I became head of the Society of St. Pius X, I thought this sad affair had been handled," he wrote. "But reading you, it seems that's not the case. I ask you to please forgive us."
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2008 letter from then-Superior General Bp. Bernard Fellay in response to André's complaints regarding Peignot
He promised to send Fr. Niklaus Pfluger, first assistant to the superior general, assigned to investigate the case, to meet with André.
It was during the meeting with Pfluger that André would learn Fellay had not been honest about his ignorance of Peignot's status, and that in fact it was Fellay himself who had lifted the ban from the priest and allowed him to be with children, making it possible for him to lead the very boy scout camp featured in the SSPX poster.

Damning Audio Recordings

André met twice with Pfluger, once in 2008 and again in 2009, and secretly recorded both meetings, audio evidence revealing damning admissions of neglect and failure to follow proper procedure on the part of the Society's highest leadership.

Fellay's investigator came to the meetings armed with a cache of documents and letters, to and from Peignot, making clear the SSPX was aware of other victims and had placed an absolute ban on Peignot on being around children — a ban that Society leadership had routinely and inexplicably flouted, placing Peignot around children for many years.

Pfluger also admitted fault on the part of the superiors general in their handling of the case: "Father Schmidberger did not follow protocol. The procedure was not correct on his part, canonically."

The letters show that restrictions had been placed on Peignot in 1990, following André's report of abuse, and that Society leadership believed the abuse had in fact occurred.
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Niklaus Pfluger, First Assistant to then-Superior General Bp. Bernard Fellay.

Pfluger had been placed in charge of investigating the case of Fr. Philippe Peignot.
"There is a ban on organizing scout camps, of being around children," Pfluger acknowledges, later reading from a 1991 letter from Schmidberger to Peignot (after Peignot had complained about his restrictions).
"The assertion is clear. On several occasions there has been impure touching of children in your car and in your office," Schmidberger wrote to Peignot. "It is necessary that you refrain from any ministry near children or young people. You are therefore officially prohibited, henceforth and forever, from youth camps."

The wording could not have been clearer.

Yet Pfluger revealed it was Aulagnier himself who had violated this prohibition, assigning the pedophile to the priory in Conflans Saint-Honorine, with free access to children, including the boy scouts at that chapel, only one year after this absolute ban had been imposed by Schmidberger.
Even worse, Peignot was allowed to remain at Conflans Saint-Honorine, with continued access to boys, for nine years.
"Thus from 1993 to 2002. We're talking nine years!" André said to Pfluger in disbelief.

"It's truly unclear why Fr. Aulagnier, or why Fr. Schmidberger failed to correct Fr. Aulagnier with respect to that," said Pfluger.

"And that is incomprehensible to me," André said.

"Yes, it's incomprehensible," Pfluger agreed, later adding, "For nine years! That's, that's unbelievable!

Pfluger admits Society leadership had no excuse for ignoring the ban: "The gravest fault on our part was above all why we failed to apply it."

Later France district superiors, Fr. Pierre-Marie Laurençon and Fr. Régis de Cacqueray, were also guilty, either transferring Peignot or leaving him in assignments where he had easy access to children.
But Pfluger revealed it was Schmidberger himself who went back on his total ban, later agreeing to allow Peignot to lead a scout camp, after Peignot vigorously protested the veracity of André's allegations.

"In that moment, by telephone, Fr. Schmidberger speaks with Fr. Phillippe François," Pfluger explained to André. "Peignot returns to Rickenbach [then global headquarters of the SSPX], to the general house. He has the green light to organize a scout camp."

"Excuse me for interrupting you, but that's something I don't understand!" André says.

"But that's it, that's the problem!" Pfluger admits. "Father Schmidberger changed his mind. That's the problem."
Stunningly, Pfluger also admitted — among other damning evidence — that it was also Fellay himself who had lifted the ban on Peignot from being around children, after Peignot wrote to him asking to lead a scout camp.
The ban had been imposed by Fr. Pierre-Marie Laurençon, French district superior at the time. Peignot had written a letter to Fellay complaining about the restrictions, leading to Fellay's decision to lift Laurençon's ban.

From a letter dated July 12, 2002, Peignot writes, "When the problem was raised two years ago, we talked and you allowed me to continue activities at the priory and camps..."

In other words, Peignot acknowledges that Fellay himself had gone back on the ban, allowing him to remain at the priory and organize youth camps with children. The SSPX has never denied this fact.

Vatican Intervenes

Unhappy with the SSPX's handling of the matter, André wrote to the Vatican's Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith (CDF). In a July 17, 2013 letter, Cdl. Luis Ladaria, then-Secretary General of the CDF, responded by sending a letter to Bp. Fellay asking that he begin a canonical trial against Peignot.

"In view of this difficulty, and in order to guarantee the exercise of justice in the spirit of canon 1717 sec. 3 CIC, this dicastery requests that you name another delegate charged with carrying out to completion the administrative trial with regard to Fr. Philippe Peignot," Ladaria writes.

As the SSPX commenced canonical proceedings, Fellay ordered Peignot to live at a remote retreat house in Montgardin, in the French Alps, nicknamed the "Golden Prison": It's the place where problem priests, whether those accused of abuse or other infractions, are sent by the SSPX to serve out their time in prayer and penance, before being reinstated back to active ministry.
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The Golden Prison: Part I, a 2016 documentary highlighting the case of Fr. Philippe Peignot and his abuse of André, and the SSPX's failure to restrict the priest.

The SSPX's canonical trial resulted in a guilty verdict on June 25, 2014, resulting in a number of restrictions on Peignot's ministry — restrictions made known to the CDF, and communicated to André in a 2017 letter from Fr. Christian Thouvenot, secretary general to the superior general, after the CDF requested that the SSPX inform André of the results.
"This conclusive decree definitively prohibits Fr. Philippe Peignot from any ministry with minors, if it involves preaching retreats or recollections to youth, Catechism or spiritual direction, and all activities involving supervision or chaplaincy of pilgrimages, of formation of children in serving Mass, of teaching chant, etc.," Thouvenot wrote.
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Excerpt from Fr. Christian Thouvenot's letter explaining June 25, 2014 judgment against Fr. Peignot
Peignot responded in July rejecting the judgment, refusing to go to Montgardin, as ordered by Fellay. Fellay wrote back in August warning Peignot he was in danger of being expelled from the Society if he refused to comply, afterwards writing to the CDF in September requesting that it ratify the SSPX's canonical judgment against Peignot.
In December 2014, the Society learned that Peignot had left the Society to join Bp. Richard Williamson's Resistance, where he ministers to this day.

Peignot was formally expelled from the SSPX in a decree signed by Fellay on Dec. 12, 2015.

As shown, the Society only took definitive action against Peignot after the Vatican intervened — and only once André requested it — nearly 40 years after the first abuse allegation, decades during which the lives of multiple boys were devastated by Peignot's abuse, left to struggle to come to grips with an SSPX priest who stole their innocence and destroyed their trust, all while Society leadership repeatedly violated its own ban, transferring, reassigning or leaving in place for years a known pedophile with free and unfettered access to children.
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Fellay allowed Peignot to take part in the ordinations in Écône, Switzerland in 2015

A Pedophile Roams Free

None of the abuse André suffered would have happened had the SSPX refused to ordain him after learning of the first abuse allegation in 1978, when Peignot was living as a monk in Riaumont. Neither would André — and perhaps other silent victims — have suffered had the Society handed Peignot over to authorities in 1987, after learning of his abuse of five victims in Champagne-Ardenne.
But as is the habit of the Society, crimes against children are handled internally, leadership not reporting perpetrators to police and instead imposing largely meaningless bans that are violated by their own leadership, or else sending offenders away for brief periods of "prayer and penance" in some isolated location before reinstating them to active ministry, where they often go on to abuse again, devastating more young lives — while Society leadership never admits responsibility.

Incidentally, the location of André's abuse in Brussels was the same place where, years later, convicted pedophile Fr. Frédéric Abbet would be assigned to live by Superior General Bp. Bernard Fellay — another case of gross criminal negligence by Society leadership, which led the prosecutor in the criminal case to insist it was the SSPX, and not just Abbet, which should've stood trial, and which prompted the secular court to accuse the SSPX of fostering criminal behavior by placing Abbet, a known pedophile, under the same roof as young boys. Abbet was convicted and sentenced to prison in 2017, currently serving out his sentence in Switzerland.

In a strange twist of irony, the office where the abuse by Peignot took place in 1988 is today called "la chambre de l'évêque" ("the bishop's quarters"). It is the room where Bp. Fellay sleeps when he travels to Brussels.
To this day, Peignot roams free, serving in a chapel in Espiet, near Bordeaux, where he is regularly around young boys unsupervised.
Meanwhile, André continues to seek justice, his allegations part of an ongoing criminal investigation by French authorities. His case remains in limbo, the statute of limitations having passed on most of the sexual assaults, while the incident of attempted rape in Peignot's car is less clear.

Other victims or witnesses of Peignot's abuse are encouraged to send their testimony to the Procureur de la République of La Roche-sur-Yon, in Vendée, France.

In spite of Peignot's sordid history of abuse and his expulsion from the Society, Fellay allowed him to take part in the 2015 ordinations at Écône, Switzerland, offering Mass and placing his hands on the heads of newly ordained SSPX priests.

He would not have been allowed to take part without Fellay's knowledge or permission.

6SSPX and McCarrick 2.0
Accused pederast pens protection policy
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/spotlight-sspx-and-mccarrick-2.0                          

Christine Niles, June 4, 2020
The Catholic Church in America was rocked by news in 2018 that Cdl. Theodore McCarrick, the man put in charge of drafting child protection policies in the U.S. Church, was in fact a homosexual predator. A disturbing parallel can be drawn in the Society of St. Pius X, which has in charge of its own protection policies an accused homosexual predator and rapist — Fr. Ramón Anglés.

[image: image29.png]



27:15

[image: image30.jpg]


 
Fr. Ramón Anglés, top SSPX canonical advisor, is under criminal investigation for allegedly raping a male teen who went on to commit suicide
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